CITY OF ELIZABETH CITY
PLANNING COMMISSION
SPECIAL MEETING

TUESDAY, AUGUST 18TH, 2020
4:00 PM

MEMBERS PRESENT
Ernest Sutton - Chairman

Johnson Biggs - Vice Chairman
Carlton O'Neal (Absent)
Suzanne Stallings (Absent)
Gary White

Kevin Johnson

Also present were Carter Thompson, Community Development Director, Kellen Long,
Planner and LaToya Harper, Secretary to the Commission.

Chairman Sutton called the meeting to order at approximately 4:00 PM and stated a
quorum.

Chairman Sutton called for a motion to approve the agenda as presented.

Planner Long stated that an amendment was needed to the agenda due to the date of
the meeting changing from August 4% to August 18 after it was cancelled because of
inclement weather.

Commissioner White made a motion for the agenda to be AMENDED and to be
APPROVED with said amendments. Commissioner Biggs seconded the motion. ALL
IN FAVOR: Biggs, White, and Johnson. NONE OPPOSED. MOTION CARRIED

Chairman Sutton called for a motion to approve the Tuesday, June 16", 2020 Special
Planning Commission minutes. Commissioner White made a motion to APPROVE the
Tuesday, June 16th, 2020 Planning Commission minutes. Commissioner Johnson
seconded the motion. ALL IN FAVOR: White, Johnson and Biggs. NONE
OPPOSED. MOTION CARRIED.

Director Thompson introduced LaToya Harper as Secretary to the Commission.
Secretary Harper, read the STATEMENT OF DISCLOSURE as follows:

Elizabeth City Code of Ethics provides that public officials and employees be
independent, impartial, and responsible to the public; that government decisions and
policy be made in proper channels of the governmental structure; that public office not
be used for personal gain; and that the public have confidence in the integrity of its

Page 1 of 8
Planning Commission Minutes
Special Meeting — Tuesday, Aug.18,2020



government. In recognition of these goals and in keeping with the ethical standards of
conduct for city public officials and its employees, disclosure of interest in legislative
action must be stated for public record, as per City of Elizabeth City Code of Ordinances
Section 32.04. Any official act or action before the Planning Commission shall be
publicly disclose on the record of the Commission the nature and extent of such interest
and the Commissioner shall withdraw from any consideration of the matter if excused
by the Commission pursuant to G. S. 160 A-75.

Chairman Sutton read the new business items as follows:

CASE NO: RZ-01-20, filed by MPB, INC. to rezone the entire property located at the
corner of Halstead Boulevard Extension and Thunder Road (Parcel ID 8903481702 from
Apartment District (AD) to Highway Business (HB) District. The parcel currently has split
zoning of both Apartment District (AD) and Highway Business District (HB). The
property is located within the City’s municipal limits and the Halstead Boulevard
Extension Overlay District.

Director explained that CASE NO: RZ-01-20 has been tabled to allow the applicant to
make changes to their application and proposal.

CASE NO: TA 02-20 filed by the City of Elizabeth City to update and modify the City’s
Unified Development Ordinance to reflect the new Chapter 160D of the North Carolina
General Statutes (G.S.). The new Chapter 160D of the North Carolina General Statutes
consolidates current city- and county-enabling statutes for development regulations
(now in Chapters 153A and 160A) into a single, unified chapter.

Director Thompson clarified that the text in the document underlined in red shows an
addition and text stricken in red shows a deletion to the text.

Director Thompson began her PowerPoint presentation:

Director Thompson began by stating that the North Carolina General Assembly is
requiring that all city and county jurisdictions amends their Unified Development
Ordinance (UDO) and City Code by January 1, 2021 to reflect the changes made in
State Statute 160D. The deadline for these changes has now been moved to August 1,
2021 due to Covid 19.

Director Thompson then went on to explain that the new state statute 160D was born
out of the 2019 legislative session and that 160D consolidates 153A and 160A, which
are current city development enabling statutes for development regulations into a single
chapter.

Director Thompson stated that 160D also places three statutes in a more logical
coherent organization with articles for planning, zoning, subdivision, building and

Page 2 of 8
Planning Commission Minutes
Special Meeting — Tuesday, Aug.18,2020



housing codes, environmental regulation, historic preservation, and community
development.

Director Thompson then explained that Statute 160D also addresses the similarities to
the terms such as conditional zoning, conditional use district, and conditional use
permit, and that the legislature had established the term “special use permit” to be
used for the quasi-judicial decisions and that conditional permits would no longer be
permitted.

Director Thompson stated that in order for the City to be in compliance with Statute
160D, staff is recommending that all conditional use permits be stricken from the
Unified Development Ordinance, and instead be considered special use permits.

Director Thompson then went on to explain how property owners and applicants that
hold a current conditional use permit will remain in effect until there is a change in use
or a change in the stipulations/conditions of that use.

Director Thompson also stated that if approved stipulations/conditions of use were to
change, then the property owner and/or applicant would be required to go through the
permit approval process for a Special Use Permit.

Director Thompson then went over the process for a special use permit. Director
Thompson stated that the applicant would first need approval from the Technical
Review Committee, then it would need to be reviewed by the Planning Commission, and
the Final action would be taken by the Board of Adjustment.

Director Thompson stated that staff found the action to amend the text in Articles 2
through 12 procedurals, charts and footer references of the Unified Development
Ordinance to be consistent with new State Statute 160D.

Director Thompson recommended APPROVAL of the proposed text amendment TA
02-20.

Director Thompson then opened the floor for questions.

Director Thompson explained that the cleanest and swiftest way to meet the
requirements mandated by the state was to change the permitted use to reflect that all
current uses that require a conditional use permit, be amended to require a special use
permit instead. Director Thompson also stated that an additional process could have
been created that she believed would have made the process more difficult to
understand, and that this concept would take the procedural process out of City
Council’s basket.

Page 3 of 8
Planning Commission Minutes
Special Meeting — Tuesday, Aug.18,2020



Director Thompson stated that this was something that was mandated by the state and
that the process that is being recommended is the cleanest and swiftest way to go
about meeting the requirements and making the changes, as this was something that
was being dictated by the state.

Director Thompson stated that the unified development ordinance was also re-
evaluated for other parts as well and proceeded to give examples. One example given
was the need for a comprehensive plan for rezoning. Director Thompson stated there
was currently a land use plan being used that would be deemed sufficient for now.
Director Thompson simply stated that in evaluating their decisions, they found the path
of least resistance to make sure the Unified Development Ordinance would be in
compliance with the new mandates.

Director Thompson explained that the Department was way ahead of the curve in what
the state was requiring. Director Thompson also stated that if anything else needs to be
amended, that staff would bring the proposed changes back to the Commission for
recommendation.

Chairman White reiterated that this was indeed a mandate from Raleigh, meaning the
State.

Director Thompson explained how when reading through the ordinance one would
notice that in the permitted use chart anything that said “C"” was simply changed to an
“S"”. Director Thompson also stated that anyone who had a conditional use permit
would be allowed to keep that permit until there were changes made to it the permit’s
conditions or use of business, then at which point, they would have to go through the
special use permitting process.

Director Thompson stated that she believes this was the fairest way to go about making
the changes and that it would be unfair if they were all deemed null and void after a
specific amount of time, which would make them a legal non-conforming permit after
the due date.

Chairman Sutton thanked Director Thomas and then asked if there were any other staff
reports.

Planner Long stated that the only report she had was that the next meeting would be
on September 1%, which is a much shorter window of time than usual because of the
hurricane pushing the current meeting behind. Planner Long just wanted the
Commissioners to be aware since it was out of the normal routine and that there would
be quite a bit of items on the next month’s agenda and she would be sending those
packets out fairly quickly.

Commissioner White inquired about a motion for CASE NO TA 02-02

Page 4 of 8
Planning Commission Minutes
Special Meeting — Tuesday, Aug.18,2020



Chairman Sutton asked if there was a motion to recommend approval.

Commissioner Gary White made a motion to recommend APPROVAL of TA02-20 to
update and modify the City’s Unified Development Ordinance in regards to the mandate
by The North Carolina General Assembly. Commissioner Johnson seconded the motion.
ALL IN FAVOR: White, Johnson, AND Biggs. NONE OPPOSED. MOTION
CARRIED

Staff Report:

Director Thomas reported that the Community Development Department was in the
process of vetting an online permitting system that will run across all three divisions.
Director Thomas explained that they had chosen a company called OPEN GOV. Director
Thomas reported that this company designs online permitting for municipalities only in
the public sector. Director Thomas explained that this would allow customers to summit
their plans at any time day or night and pay for the services online as well. Director
Thompson explained that this new system will walk the customer through a series of
questions and steps and when the customer chooses certain options it will send emails
to the appropriate staff and the entire process can all be handled online from anywhere
in the country.

Director Thompson stated that Open Gov will include Inspections, Code Enforcement,
and Planning. One example Director Thompson gave was of a potential customer who
wanted to buy a house from Texas and would not be able to travel back and forth to
visit our office in person just to hand in paperwork. Director Thomas explained how this
software would be great for economic development for our local customers and allow
us to be more marketable.

Director Thompson stated that she hopes to have this software Go Live by October 1,
2020.

Chairman Sutton asked if the OpenGov system was cost effective.

Director Thompson responded by stating that she believes it is because she believes
that she was able to get a lot of the cost discounted by explaining that it would be a
new municipality and it explained to them that they would make money off of us over
an extended amount of time not in the first year.

Chairman Sutton asked if Director Thompson has had a chance to share this
information with the leaders of the county.

Page 5 of 8
Planning Commission Minutes
Special Meeting — Tuesday, Aug.18,2020



Director Thompson stated that she had not had an opportunity to share with them
directly as she has only met a few people since she has been here, but that she had
made this information apart of the City Manager’s FYI and that hopefully everyone was
able to receive the information that way. She explained that it was going to be a
learning curve and that it will take some time getting used to. Director Thompson
stated that it was a cloud based online system. She stated that the biggest positive is
that it will put them in a position to encourage economic growth because it's hard to
maintain a paper office in this day and time and remain competitive in today’s market.

Chairman Sutton explained that his reason for asking if the County was aware of the
new online system was because he believed that they too would benefit from it, as well.
Chairman Sutton encouraged Director Thompson to reach out to them directly.

Director Thompson agreed to do so.

Chairman Report:

Chairman Sutton began by thanking everyone for being so diligent in the way they have
gone through the Covid 19 Process. Chairman Sutton stated that this situation has
challenged everyone and that no one’s life will ever be the same again.

Director Sutton explained that the negative to that is that people have a tendency to
resist change. Director stated that it was a fact that change is inevitable and that we
should use this very bad situation to adapt to what we have to deal with.

Director Sutton stated that he believes that this situation stretches us all and that it will
make us all better in terms of figuring out ways to better serve our communities.

Director Sutton said there are a lot of initiatives now because people are more engaged
and thinking of ways to be able to do what they need and that lots of people are
wondering how they can do what they do better. Director Sutton stated that from that
stand point this situation brings a positive.

Director Sutton also stated that there are also many people who are suffering now in
communities all over and that it is incumbent upon us to do the best that we can to
raise the bar on ourselves.

Director Sutton also explained that we need to hold people accountable. Director Sutton
explained that when things get bad we need to look to the hills, explaining himself by
asking where do we get the edge? Director Sutton explained that the believes it goes
back to developing staff in a new and more engaging way. Director Sutton stated that if
we were going to get things done that we were going to need a team and that it was

Page 6 of 8
Planning Commission Minutes
Special Meeting — Tuesday, Aug.18,2020



worth the time to put time into developing staff and that overall that is what will give
the leverage we need to overcome this new normal.

Chairman Sutton also addressed Director Thompson by reminding her to not drop the
idea of them engaging the community and trying to communicate to them on what the
Planning Commission is, what they do, how it's done, and how it benefits everyone.
Chairman Sutton stated that they started that project prior to Covid 19. Director Sutton
stated that many people in the community did not have a clue about what it is that we
do or how it directly impacts them.

Chairman Sutton finally addressed the fact that there will be a period of adapting to the
changes that will come with our City Manager leaving. Chairman Sutton went on to
state how he appreciates the job that Mr. Olson has done for the City over the past 17
years

Chairman Sutton then took the time discuss the fact that in spite of the serious health
challenges that out Director has faced over the past few months, she has continued to
work and managed her staff from a distance and has done a great job in never losing

control or support for her staff.

Chairman Sutton expressed his gratitude to Director Thompson directly.

Director Thompson thanked Chairman Sutton, stating that it was a challenge but she
was tough and she appreciated the words of kindness.

Chairman opened the floor for comments

MEMBER CONCERNS:
There were no further comments or member concerns:
Chairman Sutton entertained a motion to adjourn.

Commissioner White made a motion to ADJOURN the Tuesday AUGUST 18™, 2020
Special Planning Commission meeting, Commissioner Johnson seconded the motion.
ALL IN FAVOR: WHITE, JOHNSON, AND BIGGS. NONE OPPOSED. MOTION
CARRIED.

Planning Commission adjourned at 04:35 p.m. Respectively submitted,
LaToya Harper
Page 7 of 8

Planning Commission Minutes
Special Meeting — Tuesday, Aug.18,2020



